
 
 

 

AGENDA 
 

Meeting Violence Reduction Unit Reference 
Group 

Date Monday 29 October 2018 

Time 2.00 pm 

Place Committee Room 2, City Hall, The 
Queen's Walk, London, SE1 2AA 

 
Partners:
 
Sadiq Khan, Mayor of London (Chair) 
Gabriel Amahwe, Director of Probation, London CRC 
James Banks, Director, London Funders 
Carolyn Downs, Chief Executive of Brent Council 
Prof Yvonne Doyle, Statutory Health Advisor to the Mayor and Regional Director for Public  
Health England 
Sir Sam Everington OBE, Chair, Londonwide Clinical Commissioning Council 
Jake Ferguson, Chief Executive Hackney CVS 
Mary Harpley, GLA Chief Officer 
Martin Hewitt, Assistant Commissioner, MPS 
Rebecca Lawrence, Chief Executive, MOPAC 
Sophie Linden, Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime 
Will Linden, Deputy Director, Scottish VRU  
Ben Lindsay, Lead Pastor at Emmanuel Church New Cross 
Joanne McCartney AM, Assembly Member and Statutory Deputy Mayor 
John O’Brien, Chief Executive, London Councils 
Cllr Lib Peck, Leader of Lambeth Council 
Teresa Tunnadine, Lead of the Teaching Schools Network 
 
In attendance: 
 
Jeanette Bain-Burnett, Community Engagement Manager 
Nick Bowes, Mayoral Director, Policy 
Merhawit Ghebre, Peer Outreach Worker 
Kirstin Lambert, Senior Board Officer (clerk) 
Ruchi Singh, VRU Mobilisation Lead

http://connect.london.gov.uk/connect/search/toMain.do?page=/search/clickThrough.do&prefix=/search&attributeId=title&value=Assembly%20Member%20for%20Enfield%20and%20Haringey%20and%20Statutory%20Deputy%20Mayor


 

2 
 

 

Agenda 
Violence Reduction Unit Reference Group 
Monday 29 October 2018 
 
 

1 Introductions, Welcomes and Apologies for Absence  
 
 

2 Declarations of Interests  
 
 

3 VRU - Building the London Model   
 

To be presented by Rebecca Lawrence, Chief Executive, MOPAC 
 

4 VRU Public Health Approach - Working Together    
 

To be presented by Cllr Lib Peck, Leader of Lambeth Council 
 

5 VRU Community Approach - Integrating Community Voice (Pages 1 - 2) 

 
To be presented by Jeanette Bain-Burnett, Community Engagement Manager, GLA, and 
Merhawit Ghebre, Peer Outreach Worker, GLA 

 

6 Update on VRU Director Recruitment (Pages 3 - 10) 

 
To be presented by Sophie Linden, Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime 

 

7 Establishing our Evidence Base (Pages 11 - 16) 

 
To be presented by Sophie Linden, Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime 
 

8 Partnership Reference Group - Priorities, Terms of Reference and 
Membership (Pages 17 - 20) 

 
To be presented by Sophie Linden, Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime 
 

9 Date of next meeting  
 
 

10 Any other business the Chair considers urgent  
 
 
 



 
 

 

Violence Reduction Unit Partnership Reference Group 

 

Date of meeting: 29 October 2018 

Title of report:  Violence Reduction Unit – Integrating Community Voice 

Report author:  Rebecca Lawrence, Chief Executive, MOPAC 

Cleared by:  Sophie Linden, Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime 

Classification:  Public 

 

1 Executive Summary 

1.1 Partners will receive a presentation from Jeanette Bain-Burnett, GLA Community 
Engagement Manager and Merhawit Ghebre, GLA Peer Outreach Worker, detailing our 
proposal on our community response. The presentation will be based on the principles 
outlined in this paper. 

 

2 Recommendations 

2.1 Partners are recommended to discuss the presentation, ask questions and share views 
on integrating community voice in the interests of working together in partnership. 

 

3 Presentation: We are hard to reach: Our community response 

3.1 Who do we plan to work with? 

 Community and Voluntary Services 

 Community activists 

 Youth-led organisations 

 Community Organisations (all sizes) 

 Faith organisations 

 Concerned citizens (of all ages, backgrounds and persuasions) 

3.2 Why partner with communities? 

 Community activists, young people and voluntary organisations are already key 
players in preventing and reducing violence 

 Communities and local organisations are experts in their own right 

 Long term solutions are impossible without community participation and community 
infrastructure. We need dispersed leadership for a common cause 

 Community safety is a high priority for Londoners – they are living this daily, and so 
are we 

 We work most effectively with community partners when they are supported and 
well-resourced 

3.3 Principles for involving communities 

 Engage early and as equals 

 Be consistent and transparent in communication and ways of working 

 Build capacity and trust on both sides 

 Recognise the value of community expertise 

Page 1

Agenda Item 5



 
 

 

 Speak people’s language 

 Create multiple points of connection (decision-making, design and delivery) 

 Broker relationships: be a facilitator rather than a gatekeeper of relationships 

 ‘Close the loop’: follow up and take action on all engagement 

3.4 Some models for Community Engagement (with proposals to be developed for next 
meeting) 

 Skills exchange/ secondments 

 Peer-led research 

 Co-design and delivery 

 Community governance 

 Learning and information sharing networks (digital and face to face) 

Page 2



 
 

 

Violence Reduction Unit Partnership Reference Group 

 

Date of meeting: 29 October 2018 

Title of report:  Violence Reduction Unit Director Recruitment 

Report author:  Rebecca Lawrence, Chief Executive, MOPAC 

Cleared by:  Sophie Linden, Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime 

Classification:  Public 

 

1 Executive Summary 

1.1 Partners will receive a presentation from Sophie Linden, Deputy Mayor for Policing and 
Crime, detailing our proposed approach to the recruitment of the Director of Violence 
Reduction Unit.  

1.2 HAYS Executive has been appointed as the search and selection agency and it has 
already contacted partners for comment on the proposed role profile attached at 
Appendix A; comments received to date have been incorporated into this version. 

1.3 Following discussion at the meeting, it is proposed that the recruitment will go live on 
31 October 2018. 

 

2 Recommendations 

2.1 Partners are recommended to: 

a) Discuss the recruitment approach and role profile; 
b) Endorse the recruitment approach as presented; 
c) Endorse the role profile attached at Appendix A; 
d) Endorse the recruitment to go live on 31 October 2018. 

  

Page 3

Agenda Item 6



DRAFT FOR CONSULTATION 
 

 

Appendix A: DRAFT FOR CONSULTATION: Director of Violence Reduction Unit 

Role Narrative 

Violent crime is rising across the country, particularly in large Metropolitan cities. For the year 

to July, London has seen 143 homicides, the victims leaving behind dozens of bereaved family 

members; inevitably the consequences of the crimes will reverberate through the criminal 

justice system, ruining the life chances of individuals caught up in it. As well as the vast amount 

of human suffering it causes, violent crime – and the criminal justice response – 

disproportionately affects young people from BME communities – further reinforcing societal 

inequalities.  

Tackling violent crime is therefore a key priority for the Mayor. 

The causes of violent crime are extremely complex, involving a variety of deep-seated societal 

problems such as poverty, social alienation, mental ill health and a lack of opportunity. The 

solution to violent crime will therefore require a complex, holistic and varied approach – in 

short, a public health approach.  

A public health approach treats violent crime as an epidemic– first working to manage it and 

stop it from spreading, then addressing the root causes. In practice, this often involves 

intervening at critical moments in a young person’s life; for example, if they have suffered 

trauma or been excluded from school. This approach has proved highly successful in cities 

across the world – most recently in the UK the public health approach has been credited with 

contributing towards a halving of the murder rate in Glasgow between 2004 and 2017. 

On 18 September the Mayor of London announced the setup of a new Violence Reduction Unit 

to lead and deliver a public health approach to tackling the causes of violence in London, 

building on the work already underway as part of the Mayor’s Knife Crime Strategy. The unit is 

a new London partnership involving specialists from across the city, including health, police, 

criminal justice partners and local government. At the Unit’s heart is the aim of better 

understanding the risk factors in early life that can lead to violence and establish long-term 

approaches that address these factors. This work will happen at all levels in the city by working 

with boroughs, local police Basic Command Units, the health service, criminal justice agencies 

and communities.  This is the first time that such an approach has been taken in a city as large, 

and as prominent on the world stage as London.  

Of critical importance for the post will be establishing and maintaining effective relationships 

with partner organisations. The successful applicant must have a natural ability to empathise 

with those on the front lines dealing with violence and be able to inspire organisational and 

behavioural change across a wide range of stakeholders.  This role offers the opportunity of 

implementing a public health approach to violence on an unprecedented scale and will act as a 

national, or even international, centre of excellence.   

Page 4



DRAFT FOR CONSULTATION 
 

 

Role Profile 

Role Purpose 

To lead and direct the London Violence Reduction Unit, held accountable by a partnership 
board. In particular, the Director of the VRU will be responsible for: 

 Development of a long-term partnership strategy to tackle violence across the capital;  

 Putting in place the systems, processes and working relationships to deliver against the 
strategy; 

 Visible leadership of a new and innovative programme of work, setting direction for team 
and across partner organisations; 

 Building and leading an effective team with a diverse skillset and background, developing 
the skills and capabilities of the new unit; 

 Being the focal point of contact for the Mayor, Deputy Mayors and senior leaders of all of 
the partner organisations involved in the Unit, including the Metropolitan Police Service, 
London Boroughs, criminal justice agencies health services, schools and community 
organisations. 

The programme is a high-profile subject with considerable stakeholder management 
requirements, therefore significant political and handling skills are required. Programme 
management experience is required, as well as evidence of effective delivery against complex, 
long-term objectives, acting corporately across a London partnership. 

 

Main duties and accountabilities of the jobholder 

To lead the new Violence Reduction Unit, delivering a long-term public health approach to 
tackling the causes of violence in the capital. The individual will be accountable to a partnership 
board with much of the direction coming from partner colleagues. Key responsibilities include: 

 Policy and Strategy development – Developing a pan-London, public health strategy for 
reducing violence in London over the long-term. Encourage a wide examination of existing 
data, research and advice. Policy and strategy development should take account of what is 
known to work locally, nationally and internationally, as well as innovative solutions to 
London’s specific issues. 

 Leadership and management – responsible for a small team of secretariat, policy 
development, analysis, stakeholder/community engagement and delivery staff working 
across the city. Provide visible leadership on this high-profile issue and ensure that staff are 
empowered to deliver at pace, according to an overall programme plan, with risks identified 
in advance and mitigated; ensure that the Unit’s resources are used in an efficient and 
effective management to deliver the outcome of a long-term reduction in violence.  

 Personal support and stakeholder management – Provide personal advice and 
leadership on strategic matters and policy support to key stakeholders in the Unit, including 
the Mayor and the Mayoral team, the MPS, London Boroughs, criminal justice agencies, 
health services, schools and community groups. Act as a focal point for external stakeholder 
management with key individuals/groups. Ensuring that the stakeholder management and 
communication of the programme’s process and actions are of very high quality and key 
influencers are prioritised; 

 Programme management – Ensuring that the programme team identify and understand 
the priority issues for addressing the underlying causes of violence in London, and plan and 
deliver remedial measures in an effective and efficient way 

 

 

Page 5



DRAFT FOR CONSULTATION 
 

 

Working relationships and contacts 

The post holder will be required to develop and maintain strong, collaborative and effective 
working relationships in a highly complex, demanding, and changing environment across 
Central Government, the GLA family, partner agencies and their representative bodies 
(especially the London Crime Reduction Board) the Metropolitan Police and statutory and third 
sector partners.  

Key relationships include: 

 Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime  

 City Hall Leaders and teams 

 Senior Leaders in MPS, NHS 

 Community groups 

 Local Authorities 

As one of the most senior leaders in MOPAC, the post holder will be expected to demonstrate 
strong leadership skills to staff across MOPAC and partner organisations. 

 

Required Competencies 

 Significant senior leadership experience in a policing, criminal justice, public health or 
similarly complex stakeholder and political environment  

 Experience of working to bring together national, regional and local agencies to agree 
strategy and to deliver against common, strategic priorities; 

 Strong strategy development ability, with ability to articulate succinctly the strategic 
priorities of the programme, wider group of colleagues at junior and the most senior levels, 
internally and externally; 

 Ability to translate policy/strategy into practice on the ground and at a local level; 

 Good knowledge of public sector governance arrangements and the requirements of 
accountability and transparency  

 Strong track record of stakeholder engagement, building networks of influence, and 
constructive relationships across partners  

 Ability to prioritise according to the strategic objectives, as well as identifying those issues 
most likely to require mitigation; 

 Excellent analysis, policy development and delivery skills; 

 Excellent communication and presentation skills; 

 A proven track record of working in a high paced and conflicting environment, able to 
identify which issues require attention and delegate accordingly; 

 Proven history of building, motivating and inspiring effective teams and holding them to 
account through rigorous performance management and the delivery of measurable 
outcomes. 

 Relevant professional background i.e. local authority, NHS, Prisons 

 

 

 

Page 6



DRAFT FOR CONSULTATION 
 

 

MOPAC Organisational Values 

The work that MOPAC performs makes a significant contribution to the safety and security of 
Londoners and the organisation seeks to maintain and build trust and confidence with all its 
partners and the public it serves in discharging this important responsibility. To achieve this all 
MOPAC employees are expected to uphold the standards expected of those working in public 
service and demonstrate the following values in all they do; 

 Leadership; Supporting and challenging ourselves and others to make Londoners safer 

 Contribution; Giving our best in our roles and helping colleagues to achieve and develop in 
theirs 

 Innovation; Willing to try new ideas to make things better, using research and evidence to 
prove what works and to learn from what doesn’t 

 Cooperation; Bringing people and organisations together to better serve Londoners 

 Honesty; Doing the right thing - behaving ethically, with integrity, impartiality and 
transparency 

 Respect; Treating others as we would like to be treated ourselves 

 
General responsibilities 

To adhere to MOPAC’s Equality & Diversity and Equal Opportunities policies in all activities. 

To undertake such other duties as may be reasonably expected 

To be responsible for your own health and safety and that of your colleagues and all others in 
the workplace, in accordance with MOPAC Health and Safety policies. 

To work in accordance with data protection policies and adhere to Freedom of Information 
policies where appropriate 

 

Management responsibilities 

To ensure, with MOPAC’s CEO and, where appropriate, legal advisors, that the Mayor, DMPC 
and MOPAC fulfil their legal and audit related obligations, are statutorily compliant and 
respond efficiently and effectively to relevant London Assembly committees and sub-
committees. 

Fully contribute to the effective leadership of the organisation and the development of a 
delivery culture which enables the Unit to improve and innovate and effectively deliver the 
Mayor and Deputy Mayor’s visions. 

To promote equality and inclusion across the Unit’s programmes and employment through 
policy initiatives, personal example, open commitment, clear action and direction.  

Responsible for the effective management of performance and capacity with direct reports, 
confidently resolving people issues and supporting team members in their professional 
development and designing individual, team and corporate development. Undertake mentoring 
and coaching roles within the organisation ensuring the necessary development of skills and 
capabilities needed.  

Page 7



DRAFT FOR CONSULTATION 
 

 

MOPAC COMPETENCY FRAMEWORK 

Senior Manager 

Delivering Outcomes 

Delivers quality outcomes to meet strategic objectives 

Achieves successful outcomes and supports the delivery of corporate objectives by working in 
partnership at local, regional and national level where relevant. Works to meet and balance the 
diverse needs of customers, partners and stakeholders. Ensures high quality service provision 
and develops future services to customers. Develops corporate and local vision into clear 
strategy. Overcomes complex challenges by managing core issues and developing creative 
solutions. Reviews working practices and enables structural and cultural change to improve 
existing practices, adapting to shifting priorities. 

Manages risk through informed and reliable judgement 

Forecasts and manages relevant risk from multiple sources. Enables the implementation of plans 
and contingencies by setting direction effectively. Evaluates complex information and uses 
professional or technical experience to make sound strategic decisions. Sustains clear and 
robust governance over structures, operations, responsibilities and compliance. Provides 
relevant guidance to others, seeking it where appropriate. Promotes continuous improvement 
proactively by identifying, sharing and applying lessons learnt. 

Organisational Influence 

Provides strong leadership 

Provides clear direction through visible, approachable leadership and leading by example. 
Values and motivates the workforce, engaging with them to address concerns. Develops and 
empowers teams to deliver towards relevant priorities, delegating work appropriately. Manages 
and develops a positive working culture and equality practices throughout the MPS. Actively 
demonstrates the promotion of equality and valuing of diversity and helps others to do so. 
Develops self and others, showing awareness of strengths and limitations and learning within 
professional field. Takes account of how own behaviour affects others. Sets professional 
standards and works to ensure these are upheld, clearly communicating support for corporate 
vision and values. Manages performance and staff issues robustly and fairly and supports others 
to do so. Shows confidence and personal resilience, and accountability for making difficult 
decisions. Upholds policy, legislation and regulations, influencing policy where practicable. Acts 
with integrity and challenges those who do not. 

Develops effective strategic relationships. 

Establishes effective and inclusive communication processes throughout the MPS and with 
relevant external bodies. Influences and negotiates effectively through a sound understanding 
of relevant stakeholder environments. Engages with others through listening and responding, 
learning and sharing information and communicating complexity appropriately. Promotes 
collaborative working and manages effective strategic relationships to benefit relevant 
customers and stakeholders. Upholds organisational values and reputation and manages risk to 
it. 

Productivity 

Manages the right resources to enable effective working 

Evaluates complex information and relevant factors to inform long term resource requirements 
and strategic business planning. Aligns available resources to achieve high quality service 
delivery and strategic aims. Acquires and manages resources proactively and compliantly, 
working and negotiating with others where appropriate. Reviews and maximises the resources 

Page 8



DRAFT FOR CONSULTATION 
 

 

and capability of others to meet business need. Distributes work fairly according to capacity, 
knowledge and skills where relevant. 

Manages and reviews resources to drive efficient practices  

Drives a culture of efficiency and value for money through communication and involvement. 
Directs efficient working through robust supervision and holding to account. Finds sustainable 
and fair solutions to maximise efficiency, as far as appropriate, without compromising 
performance. Oversees and shows accountability for resources and finances where practicable. 
Improves efficiency continually and proactively through review, controlled change and 
optimising value for money. 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 

Violence Reduction Unit Partnership Reference Group 

 

Date of meeting: 29 October 2018 

Title of report:  Establishing the Violence Reduction Unit’s Evidence Base 

Report author:  Rebecca Lawrence, Chief Executive, MOPAC 

Cleared by:  Sophie Linden, Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime 

Classification:  Public 

 

1 Executive Summary 

1.1 Partners will receive a presentation from Sophie Linden, Deputy Mayor for Policing and 
Crime, detailing our proposed approach to establishing an evidence base for the short-
term deliverables of the Violence Reduction Unit (VRU). 

 

2 Recommendations 

2.1 Partners are recommended to: 

a) Discuss the proposed approach to establishing an evidence base for short-term 
deliverables, ask questions and share views; 

b) Consider and share any priorities within the list of deliverables or additions to the 
list; 

c) Consider and share existing work, knowledge or existing teams that might be well 
placed to lead, support or resource the delivery of these priorities; 

d) Consider and share knowledge of data, research and information that is already 
available; 

e) Consider whether they as partners would be able to second partner SMEs to support 
the mobilisation work of the VRU; 

f) Endorse the deliverables and agree that officers further develop delivery proposals 
for presentation at the next meeting. 

g) Agree actions and next steps. 

 

3 Introduction 

3.1 Work is underway to establish the VRU to take a public health approach to tackling 
violence across London - reducing violent behaviour for those already in the system as 
well as working to prevent vulnerable individuals from entering in the system in the first 
place. 

3.2 The VRU is committed to taking an evidenced based approach to delivery so that we 
can better understand the areas of high risk and high vulnerability at both a pan-
London level and at the hyper local level. This will enable us to collectively prioritise our 
efforts and resources to tackle the areas we can make the biggest impact and improve 
overall outcomes for London. 

3.3 Fundamental to the VRU mobilisation is the to establishment of a strong evidence base 
at the outset. This will, in addition to the above, enable us to : 

a) Baseline the scale of our challenge and articulate where we need to get to in the 
short, medium and long term - definition of what good looks like; 

Page 11

Agenda Item 7



 

 

Define aims and objectives 
Identify associated 

work from 
partners 

Scope study and 
commissioning 

strategy 
Commission Review 

Identify key 
themes and trends 

Triangulate with 
other studies 

Work with 
partners to inform 

VRU strategies 
and priorities 

b) Provide a critical feed in to the VRU strategy and vision development work; 
c) Provide the evidence base for the delivery priorities that VRU along with its partners 

will commit to deliver and allocate resource; 
d) Provide the basis to assess the impact of our collective delivery efforts, understand 

what is working well and less well and modify delivery behaviour accordingly. 

 

4 What we propose to do 

4.1 In addition to the significant work that is being undertaken within MOPAC and our 
partners, we propose to commission 3 key pieces of work to help us establish our 
evidence base to ensure we can take an evidenced based approach to defining our 
strategy and delivery priorities.  Our proposed deliverables are:  

a) Homicide Reviews – a review of homicides across London, to establish key 
causation factors, common patterns and to help bring forward recommendations for 
the VRU and partners to consider in developing its strategy; 

b) Strategic needs assessment – a paper that will help inform the VRU priorities by 
setting out the strategic needs and requirements across London that will help to 
deal with violence; 

c) Operating Model Development – a series of practitioner-based workshops will 
inform the development of a set of options as to how the VRU will operate across 
London; this will include an outline of the reach to Policing, health and LA 
boundaries and partnerships. This will also accommodate an outline of how 
MOPAC’s co-commissioning fund allocated to violence reduction for 19/20 and 
20/21 can be commissioned; 

d) Performance framework – an analysis of existing data and reporting across the 
GLA, MOPAC and wider partners to establish a VRU specific performance 
framework. 

4.2 We assume that VRU partners may already be developing some of this content.  
Therefore, with partner support, we will look to bring together the individual pieces of 
work already developed and commission the work needed to complete the picture and 
undertake the analysis. Our overall approach to delivery is set out below. 

 

5 Strategic Needs Assessment 

5.1 Aims and objectives 

The aim of this study is to map the pan London and local level profile of all forms 
violence (including knife crime) and develop a high level assessment of what might be 
required to improve outcomes and address the implications of violence.  Working with 
Partners we aim to take a two phased approach where phase 1 is a Rapid Needs 
assessment for London to establish a top level profile and key themes, followed by a 
localised needs assessment.   

5.2 Our proposed approach 

Phase 1  

To lead a coordinated, pan-London rapid needs assessments based on existing data, 
research and knowledge from across the GLA and partnership including knife crime, 
street violence, domestic abuse, serious violence and violence as a whole.  This will 

Page 12



 

 

enable us to assess what we know between us as partners, and what we need to support 
the create of local strategic needs assessments.   

Phase 2  

To support local communities focused development of a strategic needs assessment to 
generate a deeper understanding of the local profile that will inform how we work with 
partners and inform the development of the VRU strategy and priorities. 

5.3 Next Steps 

 Develop a proposal for the definition, scoping and plan for delivering phase 1 and 
phase 2 of the strategic needs assessment for next partnership meeting 

 Seek agreement from Partnership Reference Group on this proposal in January 

 Work with partners to identify opportunities to deliver at the local level 

 

6 VRU Homicide Reviews 

6.1 Aims and objectives 

To undertake a pan-London serious case review and hyper-local serious case reviews of 
all homicides to establish key themes and trends across all London homicides. This will 
inform will offer a risk-based approach to setting our priorities for delivery at both a pan 
London level as well as the hyper local level.   

6.2 Our proposed approach 

Consider where reviews of similar nature have been undertake for example: 

 Work with Met to learn from Domestic homicide reviews –which are led by an 
independent organisation with feeds from relevant statutory agencies. To feed into 
the VRU and perhaps wider safeguarding work across partners 

 Work with local councils and BCU who may have taken high level reviews of serious 
incidents 

 Work with prisons and coroners to understand outputs from serious incidents and 
how we can build on that knowledge to develop a broader profile of all those 
involved in a homicide. 

The intention is to provide a valuable analytical tool and a platform for local reviews 

6.3 Next steps 

 Establish where partners have undertaken similar reviews 

 Agree where this work could be led and how it could be resourced from across the 
partnership 

 Scope and design the homicide reviews  

 Bring proposals to next Partnership Reference Group meeting in November 

 

7 VRU Performance Framework 

7.1 Aims and objectives 

To establish the key performance indicators and management information that will 
enable us to take an evidenced based approach to delivery. This data set needs to 
represent the whole systems approach from prevention through to enforcement and will 
drawing from established datasets across partners. This work will be informed by the 
outcomes of the Strategic Needs Assessment and the Homicide Reviews. The 

Page 13



 

 

performance framework will reflect the key delivery priorities of the VRU at a hyper local 
and regional level. 

7.2 What could be included 

The police and crime plan sets out a range of high harm indicators that help to measure 
areas that really matter to Londoners. This includes a focus on sexual offending, 
domestic abuse, hate crime, knife crime and gun crime. 

In establishing a VRU performance framework we would look to include both objective 
(specific measurables such as regularly recorded data sets) and subjective measures 
(surveys, opinion research, results analyses of interventions and programmes etc.). 
Assessment throughout and problem solving supported by clear specific, achievable, 
relevant and measurable indicators.  

A tiered framework could be used e.g. Hyper local, Local, Regional in order that the 
right issues are managed at the right level. All partners should be represented and 
consulted on the potential measures and that a common framework is used. 

Guidance on its usage and deployment will need to developed to support all users and 
consumers of the information. 

7.3 Next steps 

 Identify data sets are available across partners 

 Proposes framework options  

 Scope and design how preferred options could be developed 

 Bring proposals to next Partnership Reference Group meeting in November 

 

8 Operating Model 

8.1 Aims and objectives 

To set out the roles and functions of VRU, agree how multi-disciplinary practitioner 
arrangements will be put in place to support a local geographical structure that enables 
the development of local violence reduction commissioning plans. Shape and form will 
be underpinned by principles of the public health approach and aim to drive forward 
quick partnership progress. In the longer term to establish greater alignment with other 
sub regional commissioning plans and statutory partnership arrangements. Working with 
partners we aim to run a set of independently facilitated sessions to develop a set of 
operating model options, which will then be supported by the development of an 
ongoing practitioner forum.  

8.2 Our proposed approach 

Phase 1 

To run a set of facilitated workshops to consult on how the VRU operates and engages 
with the local, what the local footprint looks like and how this aligns to other 
commissioning processes within partner organisations. 

To agree a set of principles as to how local commissioning strategies are developed and 
how a programme of work is taken forward and how it utilises MOPAC funding made 
available. The decision making process will be set out, with a view as to how other 
funding stream and regional commissioning strategies should and could respond to the 
local plans.  

Phase 2 

Page 14



 

 

To agree the process and timeframes for developing local commissioning plans – to put 
in place a commissioning process/timeline that supports the operating model and 
budget 

To put in place a practitioner advisory group that can ensure effective operationalisation 
of commissioning plans  

8.3 Next steps 

 Develop operating model principles and options 

 Establish commissioning, finance and governance implications resourced 

 Agree interim and/ or target operating model options with Partnership Reference 
Group in January 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



  

 
 

Violence Reduction Unit Partnership Reference Group 

 

Date of meeting: 29 October 2018 

Title of report:  DRAFT Violence Reduction Unit Terms of Reference 

Report author:  Rebecca Lawrence, Chief Executive, MOPAC 

Cleared by:  Sophie Linden, Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime 

Classification:  Public 

 

1 Executive Summary 

1.1 Partners will receive a presentation from Sophie Linden, Deputy Mayor for Policing and 
Crime, outlining the Reference Group’s proposed Terms of Reference at Appendix A for 
discussion and input by the Group. 

 

2 Recommendations 

2.1 Partners are recommended to: 

a) Discuss the proposed Terms of Reference at Appendix A and suggest any proposed 
amendments; 

b) Consider the proposed membership outlined in the Terms of Reference and discuss 
whether any amendments are required; 

c) Endorse the Terms of Reference at Appendix A, subject to any amendments agreed 
at the meeting; 

d) Agree any actions and next steps. 

 

Page 17

Agenda Item 8



DRAFT – Subject to discussion and approval by partners 

2 
 

Appendix A: Violence Reduction Unit Partnership Reference Group Terms of 
Reference 

1. Introduction 

1.1 The Violence Reduction Unit (VRU) Partnership Reference Group (the Reference Group 
herein) is a non-statutory group chaired by the Mayor of London, set up to provide 
strategic direction and oversight to the work of the Violence Reduction Unit; a multi-
disciplinary team comprising of specialists in health, police and local government to lead 
and deliver a long-term public health approach to tackling the causes of violent crime. 

 

2. Terms of Reference 

2.1 The Reference Group will be guided by, and seek to expand on, the principles set out in the 
Mayor’s Knife Crime Strategy, to include wider types of violence and look to address the 
links between violence in the home and on the street. The Reference Group will work in 
partnership to improve co-ordination between the Metropolitan Police, local authorities, 
youth services, health services, criminal justice agencies and City Hall, backed up by the 
VRU. It will also build on the work of partners and specifically drawing on what works and 
share best practice.  More specifically: 

a) To bring partners together and commit to working together to establish the VRU and a 
public health approach to tackling the causes of violent crime in London led by the 
Mayor; 

b) Our Partners to challenge and advise on VRU strategy to enable the public health 
approach to reducing violence; 

c) To support the principle of building on existing partnership work to drive a co-ordinate 
response to delivering the VRU; 

d) To agree prioritisation of the VRU work plan. 

 

2.2 The Reference Group will: 

a) Support the establishment of a robust VRU, to include: oversight of the recruitment of a 
Director for the VRU (including input on the role description and required skills); 
provision of input on the broad staffing model underneath the Director and sourcing of 
key roles; and identification of the short and medium-term work required to support 
the strongest possible start for the VRU; 

b) Identify areas of focus for the VRU, including consideration of: 

i) Homicide Reviews – Undertake serious case reviews of homicides across London, 
to establish key causation factors, common patterns to help bring forward 
recommendations; 

ii) Strategic needs assessment – Consider and inform the VRU’s priorities by setting 
out the strategic needs and requirements across London that will help to deal 
with violence; 

iii) Engagement work with partners and community leads – Hold a range of 
community events and initiatives; building on the community engagement work 
already carried out by the GLA Communities Team and MOPAC, ensuring events 
take place alongside a stakeholder engagement plan for key London delivery 
partners, such as local authorities, elected representatives, health and education. 

Page 18



DRAFT – Subject to discussion and approval by partners 

3 
 

iv) Performance framework – Analyse existing data and reporting across the GLA, 
MOPAC and wider partners to inform, agree and establish a VRU specific 
performance framework.   

v) VRU Operating model – developing operating options as to how the VRU will 
operate at a pan London vs hyper local level. 

 

3. Authority 

3.1 The Mayor cannot delegate his statutory functions to the Reference Group but can, under 
section 38 of the Greater London Authority Act 1999, delegate his statutory functions 
(Mayoral powers) to an officer of the GLA. The Reference Group does not have authority to 
make decisions and any endorsement or recommendation under these Terms of Reference 
above will be subject to formal approval in accordance with the Mayoral Scheme of 
Delegation (as amended from time to time). 

3.2 Recommendations and views expressed by the Reference Group will be agreed by 
consensus (with no requirement for voting). Where a Reference Group Member wishes, 
their dissent or objection can be recorded in the minutes of the relevant meeting. 

 

4. Membership and Terms of Appointment 

4.1 The Reference Group shall be appointed by the Mayor and comprise: 

a) Mayor of London (Chair); 

b) Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime (Deputy Chair); 

c) Deputy Mayor for Social Integration, Social Mobility and Community Engagement; 

d) Assistant Commissioner for Frontline Policing, Metropolitan Police Service; 

e) Three senior representatives from the health sector; 

f) One senior representative from the education sector; 

g) One senior representative from the Scottish VRU; 

h) One senior representative from the probation service; 

i) One senior representative from London Funders; 

j) Two representatives from London Boroughs (as nominated by London Councils); 

k) [30%] representatives from the community; 

l) Chief Executive of the Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime (MOPAC); 

m) Chief Officer of the Greater London Authority (GLA). 

 

4.2 Member terms of appointments will be set out in writing at the time of appointment and 
Members will ordinarily be appointed for a term corresponding with the Mayor’s current 
electoral term. 

4.3 When undertaking work on behalf of the Reference Group, Members are required to agree 
to comply with guidance provided by the GLA’s Monitoring Officer, to register & declare all 
relevant interests and to seek advice from the GLA’s Monitoring Officer on any issue where 
a conflict of interest is or may be arising. 

Page 19



DRAFT – Subject to discussion and approval by partners 

4 
 

4.4 The Mayor may appoint other Members over time as he considers representation that will 
best further the Reference Group’s purpose. 

4.5 The Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime may, as Deputy Chair, lead meetings of the 
Reference Group and/or undertake associated activities as directed by the Mayor.  

 

5. Attendance at Meetings 

5.1 Whilst Membership is restricted to Members, the Chair retains capacity to invite outside 
specialist input either on a standing basis or, where appropriate, on a specific project, topic 
or initiative. 

 

6. Frequency of Meetings 

6.1 Meetings of the Reference Group shall be called by the Mayor and held approximately every 
four to six weeks. 

 

7. Quorum 

7.1 The quorum for a meeting of the Reference Group is half the total number of Members 
(rounded up to the next whole number) and those present must include either the Chair or 
Deputy Chair, the Assistant Commissioner for Frontline Policing, Metropolitan Police 
Service, a London Councils representative, a Health representative and a Community 
representative. 

7.2 A Reference Group Partner may be counted in the quorum if they are able to participate in 
the proceedings of the meeting by remote means e.g. telephone or video link (or 
equivalent) and remain so available throughout the discussion and decision for each item 
for which they are counted as part of the quorum. 

 

8. Diversity 

8.1 London's diversity is its biggest asset and the Mayor of London strives to reflect London's 
diversity in all appointments. As part of their duties Reference Group Members are required 
to ensure that the diversity of London’s communities and economy is reflected in the work 
of the Reference Group. All reports presented to the Reference Group include details of 
how equality issues have been considered in the process of arriving at the recommended 
decision. 

 

9. Transparency 

9.1 The Mayor is committed to openness in his administration and is committed to making the 
work of this Reference Group transparent. Agendas and reports (where possible) for the 
Reference Group will be published in advance of meetings; reports will be released with the 
agenda except in those cases where officers reasonably consider that information contained 
in the reports may be exempt from disclosure under an applicable exemption under the 
Freedom of Information Act 2000 (FOIA) on the basis that the public interest is against 
disclosure. Minutes of the meetings of the Reference Group will be published as soon as 
practicable following each meeting. The meetings themselves will not be public to reflect 
the accountability arrangements Parliament has put in place for the GLA; that is that the 
Mayor is answerable to the London Assembly only after he has taken decisions. 

Page 20


	Agenda
	5 VRU Community Approach - Integrating Community Voice
	6 Update on VRU Director Recruitment
	7 Establishing our Evidence Base
	8 Partnership Reference Group - Priorities, Terms of Reference and Membership

